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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 Principal Accounting Policies

a. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs'), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs') and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ('HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are effective or
available for adoption for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.
Information on the changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these new and revised HKFRSs for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements is provided in note 2.

b. Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis except where stated otherwise in the accounting policies set
out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

¢. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’) and the Group's
interest in jointly controlled entities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are dealt with in the consolidated income statement from the
date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances
and transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions

are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

d. Subsidiaries and controlled entities

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is a company
in which the Group, directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share
capital, or controls more than half of the voting power, or controls the composition
of the board of directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled if the Company
has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies, so
as to obtain benefits from their activities.

Minority interests in the consolidated balance sheet comprise the outside
shareholders’ proportion of the net assets of subsidiaries and are treated as a part
of equity in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of changes in equity.
Minority interests in the results of the Group are disclosed as an allocation of the
profit for the year.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are recognised by the Company to
the extent of dividends received and receivable at the balance sheet date.

e. Jointly controlled entities

Ajointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement between the Group or Company and other parties, where the
contractual arrangement establishes that the Group or Company and one or more
of the other parties share joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group's share
of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly
controlled entities for the year.

In the Company’s balance sheet, interests in jointly controlled entities are stated
at cost less any impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled entities are
recognised by the Company to the extent of dividends received and receivable at
the balance sheet date.
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1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

f. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the
Group’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwiill is tested
reqularly for impairment.

Any excess of the Group's interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business combination is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income statement.

On disposal of an entity, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

g. Properties

1. Investment properties

Investment properties are those which are held either to earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or for both. They are stated at fair value, representing the
amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing
parties in arm’s length transaction, assessed by external qualified valuers. Any
changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement. A property interest
under an operating lease which is held for the above purposes is classified and
accounted for as an investment property.

2. Investment properties under development

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment
property is classified as investment property under development and stated at

cost, including borrowing costs capitalised, if any, and professional fees, less any
impairment loss. When the construction or development is complete, it is reclassified
as investment property at fair value. At the date of transfer, the difference between
fair value and cost is recorded in the income statement.

3. Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are classified under current assets and stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs include the aggregate costs of
development, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct expenses. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the property.

4. Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are classified under current assets and stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment of
the total development costs, including borrowing costs capitalised, attributable
to unsold units. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price as
determined by reference to management estimates based on prevailing market
conditions, less costs to be incurred in selling the property.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

h. Other fixed assets
1. Other fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

2. Leased assets

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Leases of assets under which the lessee assumes substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership are classified as finance leases. Leases of assets under which
the lessor has not transferred all the risks and benefits of ownership are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis; and

- land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee, or at the date of construction of those
buildings, if later.

(ii) ~ Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of

the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company or
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(i).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to the income statement
over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are written off as an expense of the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

(iii) Operating leases charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income statement in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the income statement as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental are charged to the
income statement in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

i. Depreciation

1. Investment properties

No depreciation is provided for investment properties and investment properties
under development.

2. Other fixed assets
Depreciation on other fixed assets is provided so as to write off the cost on a straight
line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 50 years or unexpired lease term,
whichever is shorter

Furniture and equipment 4-20 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

j. Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially stated at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives are recognised in the income statement, except where the
derivatives are held as hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge of committed
future transactions in which case the changes in the fair value are recognised in
equity to the extent that the hedge is effective.

k. Otherinvestments in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses. Other investments in securities are
classified as available-for-sale securities and are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in equity, except for impairment
losses. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly in equity is recognised in the income statement.

I.  Impairment of assets

An assessment is carried out at each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is any indication that assets other than investment properties are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the greater of

its net selling price or value in use, is estimated. The carrying amount of the asset

is reduced to its recoverable amount where appropriate. Such impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income statement in the year

in which the reversals are recognised. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill

is not reversed.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

m. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter

stated at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts.

n. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

o. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

p. Convertible cumulative preference shares of a subsidiary

The component of the convertible cumulative preference shares of a subsidiary that
exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet.
The corresponding dividends paid to the preference shareholders are recognised as
finance costs in the income statement. On issuance of the convertible cumulative
preference shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is
recognised and included in minority interests.

g. Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less

attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between costs and
redemption value being recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

r. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in the period in which they
are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred

and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale

are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

s. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Company or the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

t. Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
the income statement as follows:

1. Sale of properties
Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised upon the signing of sale
and purchase agreements.

Revenue from pre-sale of properties under development is recognised by reference
to the degree of completion of the development and the terms of payment for
properties pre-sold, with due allowance for contingencies where appropriate in
respect of agreements entered into before 1 January 2005, while the completion
method is adopted for agreements entered into on or after 1 January 2005 pursuant
to Hong Kong Interpretation 3 ‘Revenue-Pre-completion Contracts for the Sale of
Development Properties’issued by the HKICPA.

2. Rentalincome

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the
terms of the respective leases. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

3. Interestincome
Interest on bank deposits is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

4. Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

u. Taxation

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. The limited exceptions to
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

v. Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

The results of foreign operations are translated in Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in a separate component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in equity which relate to that foreign operation is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

w. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly
or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party

in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group

and the party are subject to common control or common significant influence.
Related parties may be individuals (being members of key management personnel,
significant shareholders and/or their close family members) or other entities and
include entities which are under the significant influence of related parties of the
Group where those parties are individuals, and post-employment benefit plans
which are for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

X. Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing
products or services (business segment), or in providing products, or services within
a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting, the Group has
determined that business segment be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical segment as the secondary reporting format.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly
attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions which are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between group companies within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms as those available to other
external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period on
additions of segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to be
used for more than one period.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Principal Accounting Policies (Continued)

y. Employee benefits

1. Contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes

Obligation for contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes, including
those payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
are expensed in the income statement as incurred.

2. Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is measured at grant date,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted,
and is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period taking into account
the probability that the options will vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(Employee share-based compensation reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the related capital reserve is
transferred to share capital and share premium, together with the exercise price. If
the options lapse, the related capital reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

2 Changes in Accounting Policies
The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are effective for the
Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2005.

The Group adopted in advance the following HKFRSs in the preparation of the
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2005:

+ Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40 (HKAS 40') - Investment Property

+ Hong Kong (SIC) Interpretation 21 (HKSIC-Int 21") — Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

The financial impact as a result of the adoption of HKAS 40 and HKSIC-Int 21 was
summarised in note 1(b) of the 2005 annual report of the Group.

The accounting policies of the Group after the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs first applied in current year’s financial statements have been summarised in
note 1. The following sets out information on the significant changes in accounting
policies for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in the financial
statements.
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

a. HKFRS 3‘Business Combinations’

In prior years, positive goodwill arising on or after 1 July 2001 was amortised on

a straight line basis over its estimated useful life and was subject to impairment
testing when there were indications of impairment. Negative goodwill which arose
on or after 1 July 2001 was amortised over the weighted average useful life of the
depreciable/amortisable non-monetary assets acquired, except to the extent it
related to identified expected future losses as at the date of acquisition. In such cases
it was recognised in the income statement as those expected losses were incurred.
Positive and negative goodwill which arose prior to 1 July 2001, were taken directly
to capital reserves in accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 30 'Business Combinations.

With effect from 1 July 2005, in accordance with HKFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’
and HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets; the Group no longer amortises positive
goodwill. Such goodwill is tested for impairment. Impairment losses are recognised
when the carrying amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill has
been allocated exceeds its recoverable amount. Negative goodwill is recognised
immediately in the income statement as it arises.

This change in accounting policy has been adopted prospectively from

1 July 2005. The Group's negative goodwill of $1,480.0 million previously credited to
capital reserve on consolidation and other capital reserves has been transferred to
retained profits. The net effect of the above transfer has increased retained profits
by $1,480.0 million and reduced capital reserve on consolidation and other capital
reserves by $1,058.4 million and $421.6 million respectively.

b. HKAS 32 Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’ and
HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement’

1. Investment in equity securities

In prior years, equity investments held on a continuing basis for long-term purpose

were classified as non-current assets and stated at cost less provision. All other

investments are stated at fair value with the changes in fair value being dealt with in

the income statement. With effect from 1 July 2005, and in accordance with HKAS 39,

all investments are carried at fair value with their changes in fair value are recognised

in equity except for investments held for trading purposes which are recognised in

the income statement.

This change was adopted by increasing the opening balance of the investment
revaluation reserve as at 1 July 2005 by $27.6 million. Comparative amounts have not
been restated as this is prohibited by the transitional arrangements in HKAS 39. As a
result of this policy, an unrealised gain of $14.0 million for current year was recorded
in equity.
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Notes to the financial statements

2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. HKAS 32 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation’, and
HKAS 39 ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement’
(Continued)

2. Derivatives and hedging

In prior years, the Group's derivative financial instruments which were mainly used

to manage the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuation were recognised on an

accrual basis.

With effect from 1 July 2005, and in accordance with HKAS 39, all derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group are stated at fair value. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives held as hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge of committed
future transactions are recognised in equity to the extent that the hedge is effective.
Any ineffective portion of the changes in fair value of the derivatives is recognised in
the income statement.

This change was adopted by reducing the opening balance of the retained profits
and minority interests as at 1 July 2005 by $11.0 million and $9.8 million respectively.
Comparative amounts have not been restated as this is prohibited by the transitional
arrangements in HKAS 39. As a result of this policy, net profit for the current year
increased by $11.4 million.

3. Reclassification of convertible cumulative preference shares of a subsidiary

In prior years, convertible cumulative preference shares of a subsidiary were classified
as minority interests based on their legal form. Dividends paid to the preference
shareholders were presented as a distribution to minority shareholders.

With effect from 1 July 2005, in accordance with HKAS 32, the classification

of convertible cumulative preference shares is based on the substance of the
contractual agreement. On the issue of the convertible cumulative preference
shares, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible preference share; and this amount is carried as a
long term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option
that is recognised and included in shareholders'equity. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years. The dividends paid to
the preference shareholders of $17.2 million for the year (2005: $27.5 million) are
recognised as finance costs in the consolidated income statement.

The change in accounting policy has been adopted retrospectively by reducing the
opening balance of minority interests at 1 July 2005 by $355.0 million (2004: $460.6
million).
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

¢. HKFRS 2’Share-based payment’

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when employees were granted share
options over shares in the Company. If the employees chose to exercise the options,
the nominal amount of share capital and share premium were credited only to the
extent of the option’s exercise price received.

With effect from 1 July 2005, in order to comply with HKFRS 2, the Group recognises
the fair value of such share options as an expense in the income statement, or as an
asset, if the cost qualifies for recognition as an asset under the Group's accounting
policies. A corresponding increase is recognised in a capital reserve within equity.

Where the employees are required to meet vesting conditions before they become
entitled to the options, the Group recognises the fair value of the options granted
over the vesting period taking into account the probabilities that the options will
vest. Otherwise, the Group recognises the fair value in the period in which the
options are granted.

If an employee chooses to exercise the options, the related capital reserve is
transferred to share capital and share premium, together with the exercise price. If
the options lapse, the related capital reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively with comparatives
restated, except that the Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions
set out in HKFRS 2, under which the new recognition and measurement policies
have not been applied to all options granted on or before 7 November 2002. The
opening balance of retained profits as of 1 July 2005 as a result of the change of the
policy decreased by $37.8 million (2004: $4.0 million) and the Group's profit after
taxation for the current year decreased by $20.5 million (2005: $33.8 million), with the
corresponding amounts credited to the capital reserve.

d. Presentational changes

In order to enhance the understandability of the financial statements, some items
on the balance sheets have been reclassified and certain comparative figures have
been restated according to the new classification. The application of the new
HKFRSs has also resulted in changes in the presentation of the financial statements
retrospectively with comparatives restated to conform to the current year’s
presentation, in respect of the following:

1. In prior years, minority interests were presented in the consolidated balance
sheet separately from liabilities and as a deduction from net assets. Financial results
shared by minority interests were separately presented in the consolidated income
statement as a deduction before arriving at the profit attributable to shareholders.

With effect from 1 July 2005, in order to comply with HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements’and HKAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from the equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company, and the
results shared by minority interests are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the attributable profit between the minority
interests and the shareholders of the Company.
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

d. Presentational changes (Continued)
2. In prior years, share of jointly controlled entities'taxation was presented

as a component of taxation in the income statement. On adoption of the

HKAS 1, share of jointly controlled entities' taxation is presented net of the share of

jointly controlled entities' profit.

e. Summary of the effect of changes in the accounting policies

1. Effect on opening balance of total equity at 1 July 2005 and 1 July 2004

R s
Shareholders'equity
REEN  BARAMEE LURR R At
Retained Capital and Minority
WEEEETHE in HKS million profits other reserves interests Total
R-ZERFLA—A At T July 2005
Al ARG Prior period adjustments
HKAS 32 HKAS 32 - - (355.0) (355.0)
HKFRS 2 HKFRS 2 (37.8) 378 - -
(378) 378 (355.0) (355.0)
FNHE Opening adjustments
HKAS 39 HKAS 39 (11.0) 276 (9.8) 6.8
HKFRS 3 HKFRS 3 1,480.0 (1,480.0) - -
BREm/ ) Bm Total increase/(decrease) in equity 14312 (14146) (364.8) (348.2)
—EEMELA-A At 1 July 2004
Ik Eak: Prior period adjustments
HKAS 32 HKAS 32 - - (460.6) (460.6)
HKFRS 2 HKFRS 2 (4.0) 40 - -
B/ (R Total increase/(decrease) in equity 40) 40 (460.6) (460.6)
2. HIRBRENLHAFZZE 2. Effecton net profit attributable to shareholders
LEREETiTE in HKS million 2006 2005
HKAS 39 HKAS 39 1.4 -
HKFRS 2 HKFRS 2 (20.5) (338)
REREEAERR D B8 Total decrease in net profit attributable to shareholders (9.1) (338)
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2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

f. No early adoption has been applied for the following new Standards or
Interpretations which have been issued by the HKICPA but are not yet effective. The
adoption of such Standards or Interpretations will not result in substantial changes
to the Group's accounting policies.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: disclosures
Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement:

- Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions
- Financial guarantee contracts

Amendments, as a consequence of the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment)
Ordinance 2005, to:

« HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
- HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial statements
« HKFRS 3, Business combinations

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: capital disclosures

3 Turnover and Segment Information

The principal activities of the Company, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, are
investment holding and, through its subsidiaries, property development for sale,
property leasing for rental income and other investments. The Group also operates in
car park management and property management, and through its jointly controlled
entities, the Group is involved in the operation of dry-cleaning.
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Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets including cash and
deposits with banks of $6,189.4 million (2005: $3,733.8 million), investments of $119.6 million
(2005: $65.7 million), interest-bearing borrowings including bank loans of $11,787.0 million
(2005: $6,397.1 million), other liabilities of $2,070.7 million (2005 restated: $2,616.0 million),
and taxation of $4,266.1 million (2005: $3,595.6 million).
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3 EXBERoHER 3 Turnover and Segment Information (Continued)
EETBEMERERFEEZIRA - REBKRME  Turnover represents revenue from property leasing and sales. An analysis of turnover
DEAM 2 EEBEHN T ° by business and geographical segments is set out below.
a. ¥XBoH a. Business segment
1. DEIWARF#E 1. Segment revenue and results
AEUA AEEE
Segment revenue Segment results
(&5) (E7)
(restated) (restated)
WEKEETE in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
MERE Property leasing 2,969.8 25726 2,240.5 19414
MEHE Property sales 1,313.9 48996 383.1 1687.7
4,283.7 74722 2,623.6 3,629.1
HenA Other income 285.0 600.6
THER Administrative expenses (252.0) (224.2)
| Operating profit 2,656.6 40055
BEWME 2 DFEEM Increase in fair value of investment properties
-ME¥ERE - property leasing 3,925.3 6,290.3
BHER Finance costs (541.5) (303.8)
kNG Share of profits of jointly controlled entities
-MERE - property leasing 1123 1179
BRI ENRF Profit before taxation 6,152.7 10,109.9
AHEEREE 2. Segment assets and liabilities
BE afE
Assets Liabilities
(E31) (E31)
(restated) (restated)
LEREETITE in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
MERE Property leasing 47,508.1 419347 1,829.3 1,849.7
MEHE Property sales 10,954.7 11,489.0 3204 4114
58,462.8 534237 2,149.7 2,261.1
iNCR-UNCIPA: 33 Interest in jointly controlled entities
MERE Property leasing 921.9 8586 - =
MERE Property sales 385.5 3858 - =
AHE (M) Unallocated (Note) 6,738.2 4,036.1 18,032.4 124770
66,508.4 58,704.2 20,182.1 14,738.1
MsE Note:
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BARR% neE
Capital expenditure Depreciation
YEKGETITE in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
MERE Property leasing 1,508.6 1,184.7 10.8 98
AEBA DEEE
Segment revenue Segment results
(E5)
(restated)
LEREETIE in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
£ Hong Kong 3,150.4 6,5014 1,877.7 31244
LG Mainland China 1,133.3 970.8 745.9 504.7
4,283.7 74722 2,623.6 3,629.1
LEKEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
£ Hong Kong 47,625.2 447223
FEI A Mainland China 12,264.6 10,0111
59,889.8 54,7334
LEKEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
BN Hong Kong 116.0 763
R A Mainland China 1,392.6 1,084
1,508.6 1,184.7
104 EEsEmERAR —22H/SAEFEHR
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%[ Group
(E31)
(restated)
LEB ST E in HKS million 2006 2005
FRBATE M2 R T5IR3 - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
ARRFNEERZBTER Interest on bank loans and other borrowings
Hi & 2 & repayable within 5 years 287.6 1145
ARTERBREZBITERTE Interest on bank loans repayable after 5 years 190.1 69.0
BEMNER Finance lease charges 475 516
—RMBLRZ ARERE Dividend on convertible cumulative preference shares
BB (5T of a subsidiary (Note i) 17.2 275
Hin B e E X it Other andillary borrowing costs 59.7 614
BEX HEE Total borrowing costs 602.1 3240
A BB E A () Less: Borrowing costs capitalised (Note i) (60.6) (202)
MBER Finance costs 541.5 3038
%ERE & Auditors' remuneration
- GERB - audit services 6.5 6.8
— H At R - other services 0.6 2.1
e Depreciation 108 98
BHEME AR : Cost of properties sold:
E{ELES Development properties 7375 27277
REN%E Investment properties 152.6 3049
FEEB Provision for inventories - 42
M%%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ BEIARE-_TZERTET Operating lease charges, including contingent rents
ZEERF —FARENTET) of $23.5 million (2005: $16.9 million) 100.2 928
Hﬁ&lﬁﬁm AEEEREER_TABATER Staff costs, including employee share-based payment
“EERF mFAE—TET) expenses of $29.9 million (2005: $49.1 million) 282.6 3170
WEFA and after crediting:
RE—R EHMBERFRN 2 RE Deemed profit on placement of a listed
S ) (B =) subsidiary's shares (Note iii) = 4780
KB ETREREWA Dividend income from listed investments 2.6 23
FEKA Interest income 263.9 1203
HEREME R Profit on disposal of investment properties 85.9 528
HE ETRE &R Profit on disposal of listed investments 18,5 =
MEWA  ENREZEHHE-TN\BLTERL Rental income less direct outgoings of $718.5 million
(Z2TRE . ﬁﬁ‘:?/\ﬁt‘l‘&%i REETAY (2005: $628.7 million), including contingent rentals
—E-FTER(ZZZRE \THEATET) of $110.0 million (2005: $84.6 million) 2,2445 19442

BEE

) ARAEZEWMERRBRGERRRR([EREH
ENR-—AN=ZF+-AZTEREELTREALZ
HRBRREELR  TA2RER-FTEITZREAK
BREFNEAHAE - ZBEREDINEBE=
TTREFERNAZTRALLE - IS ERATE R E R
2B RREERZA

(i BRIMEZEEXHESFAS <A(ZEED
FHPZHN)ZTFHRERE -

(i) —ZTThFREHENRABEBLEARAARN
“RENFE+-AREZEETERMBRS -

Notes:

(i) The convertible cumulative preference shares were issued by Hang Lung Properties Limited

('HLP"), the Company’s listed subsidiary, of $7,500 each issued in November 1993 bearing dividend
at 5.5% per annum on a reference amount of US$1,000 each. The preference dividend was paid up
to 26 June 2006, the date of compulsory conversion of all the outstanding convertible cumulative

preference shares.

(ii) The borrowing costs have been capitalised at an average rate of 5.0% (2005: 1.8%) per annum

for properties under development.

(iii) The deemed profit for 2005 arose from the placement of 370 million new shares by Hang Lung

Properties Limited in November 2004.
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5 EEREREERCHE

RELFMEZESERNEBUIFNTES - %
ZEERNESSRTABEZT RN RERGE
FHEE - BEENM HNRBEERFNENS
CERNEENERR  KEEARARBNRBRRE
M mHEANRRITOERBGREMET -

a. EEME
BEEE (RFHEMN) E—BAT—ER—AAN
+—FIEFR Bz EEMEWT ¢

5 Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of four Independent

Non-Executive Directors. The Committee makes recommendation to the Board on
the Directors' remuneration packages and terms of employment. The emoluments
of Directors are determined by the scope of responsibility and accountability, and

individual performance of directors, taking into consideration of the Company’s

performance and profitability, market practice and prevailing business conditions.

a. Directors’emoluments
Directors’emoluments disclosed pursuant to Sections 161 and 161A of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

WEEEETHE in HKS million % AEEY

2R RIRE5 2
e EMila BETEAL R E Z A5 CE

Salaries, Group's

allowances and Discretionary Share-based contributions to
e Name Fees benefits in kind bonuses compensation  retirement scheme Total
BRECR Ronnie C. Chan 04 76 52 6.0 08 200
BRwE SS.Yin 03 = = = = 03
RER Nelson W.L. Yuen 03 73 50 6.0 09 195
BREER Gerald L. Chan 0.1 - - - - 0.1
BRétia Laura LY. Chen 03 - — = = 03
g HK. Cheng 04 - - = = 04
Tt & (P Wilfred SL. Ho (Note) 03 05 - 47 20 75
Ef% Simon S.0. Ip 02 = = = = 02
BAR York Liao 02 - - - - 02
RIn Terry S.Ng 03 38 2.3 2.7 02 9.3
3 2006 28 19.2 12,5 194 39 578
R Ronnie C. Chan 04 44 66 1.5 04 233
B E SS.Yin 0.2 = = = = 02
rER Nelson W.L. Yuen 03 42 63 114 16 238
BREER Gerald L. Chan 0.1 - - = = 0.1
BR&a Laura LY. Chen 03 - - - - 03
e %2 HK. Cheng 04 - - - - 04
At R Wilfred S.L. Ho 0.3 19 29 5.2 02 105
EfR Simon SO. Ip 02 - = = = 02
BAR York Liao 02 - - = = 02
Rt Terry S.Ng 03 22 33 52 0.1 AR
—ETRE(EY)) 2005 (restated) 27 12.7 19.1 333 23 70.1

Mt 3E - Note:

MEREEER-_ZBZRFAA—RERE-

106 ®BEEEERAT —B2H/ENFEH

Mr Wilfred S.L. Ho retired on 1 September 2005.



5 EERGREERCHE

a. EEME (&
BENAZTRLTRERE T

RE -

b. BEHEEHE

BEBSHALOE_SEAFNEER (T

THE WEEF)NHOT :

BN THITE
EMREA - —RRT-MBRFENA/NARK
NI RBRNZIBEE 2B BEHRE -

B LBEs - ETEERBEARRANKRN B
RETERE B R FEEMBERRM 28

(Continued)

a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

reflected in the latter year’s financial statements.

to the financial statements.

b. Emoluments of the highest paid employees

directors for 2006 (2005: 4 directors), are as follows:

B SRR ATRE

Notes to the financial statements

5 Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management

Payment of bonus to Executive Directors, due at the end of a financial year ending
30 June, is normally made in August/September of the following financial year and is

In addition to the above emoluments, certain directors were granted share options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are disclosed in note 28

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, including 4

%8 Group
(E5)
(restated)
LEREETIE in HKS million 2006 2005
itk Fees 13 12
e EUHREYNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 20.9 142
MEEA Discretionary bonuses 13.1 192
BREHE Share-based compensation 21.0 333
AEEBHRKSHEINMRR Group's contributions to retirement scheme 4.1 39
60.4 718
NEMENFTHEE : The above emoluments fall within the following bands:
Number of individuals
(E31)
(restated)
2006 2005
$3,000001  — $3,500,000 - 1
$4,000001  — 4,500,000 1 -
$7,000001  — $7,500,000 1 -
$9,000001  — $9,500,000 1 -
$10,000001 — $10,500,000 - 1
$11,000001 — $11,500,000 - 1
$19,000001 — $19,500,000 1 -
$19,500,001 — $20,000,000 1 -
$23,000001 — $23,500,000 - 1
$23,500,001 — $24,000,000 - 1
5 5

¢ BEZZTZRAFAAZTHRZZZRFN < During the years ended 30 June 2005 and 30 June 2006, there were no amounts

A=ZTRALEE  BEALAEZRERITHA

BXAFEEAEREESNRSIEMBEAEER - inducement for joining the Group.

paid to directors and senior executives above for compensation of loss of office and
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6 mEWIEKRAZBIA
a BAKSRAZHES

6 Taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement

a. Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

58 Group
(&5)
(restated)
LEEEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
=ERE Current tax
KEEEBNER Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 150.7 4083
BEFE REIR/(ZR) Under/(Over)-provision in prior years 0.7 98)
151.4 398.5
KEEREIFAEHR PRC Income Tax for the year 87.4 142
BRI Deferred tax
RERBOEEEZEE(MF17(0) Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 17(b)) 912.3 14915
1,151.1 1,904.2

EANGHETEMGHHBREREFRN G
AERBUBFIDRIRUBERAS Z T LB ARA
DZ=t=ctH-

b. BE-RTXFRA=THLFEZREA
ERRBBE-T B8 (ZFFRF  _TH
B—TBIL)EFARERERRENA -

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Income Tax is calculated at 17.5% and

33% respectively of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

b.  Share of jointly controlled entities' taxation for the year ended 30 June 2006
of $21.0 million (2005: $25.1 million) is included in the share of profits of jointly

controlled entities.

c BEXHESHENAEAMETEZ  c  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable
FE tax rates:
(E51)
(restated)
LB BEETE in HKS million 2006 2005
BREL AR A Profit before taxation 6,152.7 10,109.9
BRBAENABRAREFE 2 HIE Tax on profit before taxation at applicable rates 1,268.6 20536
EiheeRanflzHEYE Tax effect of share of profits of jointly controlled entities (21.0) (25.1)
EERBMA ZHIBZ 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (108.6) (127.0)
FMRE L2 HBRE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 19.7 254
Bz BREBEREMIIR Tax effect of tax losses utilised and
TRz AT E other deductible temporary differences (22.4) (403)
AR BBERHEYE Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses 23.2 156
Hit Others (9.1) 118
BEEEZBEIR/(ZR) Under/(Over)-provision in prior years 0.7 (9.8)
ERHEY Actual tax expense 1,151.1 19042
108 fEE£EERAT —STH/SAFEHR



7 REREEAR

BREELEFBEARRPERERAZEF BN
B=T—BATET(ZZEZRFEY : =TFN
A-t&x) e

8 KE

a. AEERE

B SRR ATRE

Notes to the financial statements

7 Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Net profit attributable to shareholders includes a profit of $931.9 million (2005
restated: $38.2 million) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

8 Dividends

a. Dividends attributable to the year

LUBREE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
EMRERTHRESRTOE R Interim dividend declared and paid of 145 cents
(ZZTRF : +WEA) (2005: 14.5 cents) per share 193.1 1926
REEBEERARBREFMIE+—L  Final dividend of 41 cents (2005: 40 cents) per share proposed
(ZZTREFE : I after the balance sheet date 546.3 5327
7394 7253
REFHRER 2 RARE - XEERBEEH  The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been recognised as
ZBE- a liability at the balance sheet date.
b. F—HHEFEZRERFARERIKE b. Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved

and paid during the year

LEEREETE in HKS million 2006 2005
OB EERAREREA Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,

BB RRE Gl approved and paid during the year of 40 cents

(ZZTRF : =151l (2005: 36 cents) per share 532.7 4780
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9 BREAER

a. BRERBAIDRAEE ZRREHLLER
—HNE=FZBEATEL(ZZEZTRFEY :
MN+AEEF=at+8x) RFRBBITRG
ZIMEEAFT=F=FT—B=TER(ZEZ
1E: F=ZEFEEATERGHE -

b. SRESEFNIREARE ZRREMN LT
THN\E=FZBEATERL(ZZETRFEY :
M+REONF=8tT8xT) Rt \FTEEEH
%%*UH&@ZWE?éZ?JNEii’J%(JT BE+E

9 Earnings Per Share

a. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the net profit attributable
to shareholders of $2,832.6 million (2005 restated: $4,643.7 million) and the weighted
average number of 1,331.3 million (2005: 1,327.9 million) shares in issue during

the year.

b.  The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the adjusted net profit
attributable to shareholders of $2,832.6 million (2005 restated: $4,643.7 million) and
the weighted average number of 1,340.4 million (2005: 1,336.3 million) shares after
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential shares.

M+ER(ZETRFE: +=ZB=FT~B=T8
BR)EE -
c FAfE c. Reconciliations
2006 2005
AN ESRERRTZ Weighted average number of shares used in
R ik EH & calculating basic earings per share 1,331,295,762  1,327,944,545
Eﬁﬁ%f’ﬁ% ZEERDZ Effect of dilutive potential shares - share options
FE-BRihEE 9,152,260 8,324,090
AN ESREERTIZ Weighted average number of shares used in
PR A7 D Y 35 81 calculating diluted earnings per share 1,340,448,022  1336,268,635

d. BEREARBIRN(TEECHBKRETH
AR DB RS Z&ﬁ%% NEEEE) TR
BAT AR ENGE

d. The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share excluding changes in fair
value of investment properties net of deferred tax and minority interests is based on
the profit adjusted as follows:

(&5)

(restated)

LB BETiE in HKS million 2006 2005
PR R ek A 7 Net profit attributable to shareholders 2,832.6 46437
RENMEATEED T2 Effect of changes in fair value of investment properties (2,356.9) (3,2443)
HEREERIE ¥ E Effect of corresponding deferred tax 474.1 4698

FUGTESRER / BERH Adjusted earnings for calculation of
AR basic/diluted earnings per share 949.8 1,869.2
110 ErEEEARAT —2TH/EAEEH
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BEH
REME REME Hit BEf
Investment
Investment  properties under
WEMEE T E in HKS million properties development Others Total
RAELIAE Cost or valuation:
R-ZEZEMFELA—H At 1 July 2004 32,2269 22744 3086 34,809.9
NE Additions 69.7 1,106.8 8.2 1,184.7
B\ /(E) Transfer 7828 (782.8) = =
& Disposals - (304.9) 0.1) (305.0)
NEEE Increase in fair value 6,290.3 = = 6,290.3
RZZEZERFA=TH At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005
k—ETRE+A—H 39,369.7 2,293.5 316.7 419799
NE Additions 122.0 1,374.1 125 1,508.6
BA /(8 Transfer 3363 (3363) = =
HE Disposals = (152.6) (23) (154.9)
NEEEM Increase in fair value 39253 = = 39253
R-EEAEXNAZTH At 30 June 2006 43,7533 3,178.7 3269 47,2589
REHE Accumulated depreciation:
R-ZZENFLA—H At 1 July 2004 - - 2396 2396
KEEHE Charge for the year - - 98 9.8
A E R Written back on disposals = = 1) 0.1)
RZZEZRAF A=1H At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005
k—ZTRF+A—H - - 2493 2493
AEEME Charge for the year - = 108 108
EEERD Written back on disposals = = 17) 17)
RZZEERFENAZTH At 30 June 2006 - - 2584 2584
BEFE Net book value;
R ENA=1H At 30 June 2006 43,7533 3,178.7 68.5 47,000.5
RZZEZRAF-A=1H At 30 June 2005 39,369.7 2,293.5 674 41,7306
BATEENSNA=1THZRKE Cost or valuation of the fixed assets
HAENT at 30 June is made up as follows;
“ETRE 2006
M Valuation 437533 = - 43,7533
A Cost - 3,178.7 3269 3,505.6
43,7533 3,178.7 3269 47,2589
—EEREF 2005
fh{E Valuation 39,369.7 - - 39,369.7
KA E Cost - 2,2935 316.7 26102
39,369.7 2,293.5 316.7 419799
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10 BEEE-&KB = 10 Fixed Assets — Group (Continued)
MEZREFEINAT An analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:
REMZE ERPRENE
Investment properties
Investment properties under development
LB RE T E in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
BERREMRE Long leases in Hong Kong 23,882.3 216795 678.5 6780
BN E R B2 Long leases outside Hong Kong 734.0 677.0 1,136.7 3711
Eith R Medium term leases in Hong Kong 10,264.0 91432 - =
ERIMNEE T B2 Medium term leases outside Hong Kong 8,683.0 76700 1,363.5 12444
ENEy SR b Short lease in Hong Kong 190.0 2000 - -
43,7533 39,369.7 3,178.7 2,293.5

a. AEEMBUAAFEIERZEEMESR  a.  Investment properties of the Group carried at fair value were revalued as at
ZEEARFRNAZTHLE - KFREHNMEE 30 June 2006 by Mr Charles CK. Chan, Registered Professional Surveyor (General
NEEBERARARZEMBEZBEMM(EZEB  Practice), of Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, on an open market
2)RBBELERAFTE  2LHEEE - I value basis with reference to the total rental income after taking into account
SPAMAERERREEABE 2K ETHE  reversionary income potential.

TZIHEETE -

AEEREMEZEEFEENA=-TEERT  Thenet bookvalue of investment properties of the Group of $43,753.3 million (2005:
SHE=TBR(ZEZRE  ZFAT=ESRT  $39,369.7 million) includes an amount of $2,919.0 million (2005: $2,592.0 million) in
NEETET)ABERERERAOMBALZE  respect of an asset held under a finance lease.

E HEEmFEA-TAE-—ThAhBEER(ZZE

TRE Z+HREATFZEET) °

AEFBHMWETEEZERFENST/\BERTE  The net book value of other fixed assets of the Group of $68.5 million (2005: $67.4
T ZEBEZRF : XTFEEE+TET)ABES R million) includes amounts of $10.3 million (2005: $10.4 million) and $5.7 million
REBREBEAIME A RAHZIFEN LM (2005 $5.8 million) in respect of land and buildings held in and outside Hong Kong
RBRENARNAE—TFTE=TEBL(ZEZTHF +  respectively on long leases.

—FTEO+ER)RAEBETEL(ZTEERF

FANTETL) -

112 BrREEERAF —B2H/ENFEH



WVEEEE-KH (=

b. AEERBEXHEHLARZBERL D
HEREYE REHRO-—ROS/HMER
FHERHOBRERBEYN  ERNEFHEME
R RAENBESIAEN RN HNIBZE
Fo MAKREESFHE - ELHINBOBRE
e BTHHNBRIARES  X2EMEZRA
MmEE °

RAAZTHE  RETAHHE2EXZBORIE
W RFHES@EBMT
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Notes to the financial statements

10 Fixed Assets — Group (Continued)

b.  The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases and
subleases under finance lease. Leases typically run for an initial period of two

to five years, with some having the option to renew, at which time all terms are
renegotiated. Long term leases contain rent review or adjustment clauses and the
Group has a regular proportion of its leases up for renewal each year. Certain leases
include contingent rentals calculated with reference to the revenue of tenants.

At 30 June, the Group's total future minimum lease income under non-cancellable
operating leases were as follows:

WAkl HAb L st
WEEGETE in HKS million Subleases Other leases Total

ZEERE 2006
—FR Within 1 year 193.5 2,242.8 2,436.3
—FERERFER After 1 year but within 5 years 319.8 1,908.2 2,228.0
LE% After 5 years 70.3 41.1 1.4
583.6 4,192.1 4,775.7

“ZTHE 2005
—FR Within 1 year 1619 1,850.8 20127
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 2213 1,862.5 20838
TEE After 5 years 838 1233 207.1
4670 3,836.6 43036

11 B A TER 11 Interest in Subsidiaries
‘7 &) Company

WEKEETTE in HKS million 2006 2005
FEMBRR - AR Unlisted shares, at cost 165.7 165.7
FEMREH B 1 R SRR R Amounts due from subsidiaries less provision 12,101.8 11,847.0
12,267.5 12012.7

TEMBARZFEEMSRNHIE4 -

e/ ERMBRARAFAREER 28 - MA
RUZEFERAR T ZEAARTARE /&S
B&  BIMEERBDEE/BE -

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and classified
as non-current as these are not expected to be recoverable/repayable within the
next twelve months.

113
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%8 Group A7) Company
LEEEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
FEEMBRG  KAE Unlisted shares, at cost - = 5.4 54
BLEEFE Share of net assets 2117 1342 = =
211.7 134.2 5.4 54
i NI EA Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 1,108.0 11222 6.1 58
BAEERQ ElﬁAIEi Amounts due to jointly controlled entities (12.3) (12.0) (7.1) 7.1)
1,307.4 1,244 4 44 41
BUEERAFBEEANATELE-TEIL(ZF  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities included a provision of $67.1 million
TRE /—ﬂFtE‘ TET)EE - (2005: $67.1 million).
TBREERFZFAMEMBENMESS - AEEA  Details of principal jointly controlled entities are set out in note 35. The summary
BARERMEERBRNT - financial information related to the Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are
as follows:
LB RS E in HKS million 2006 2005
ENBEE Non-current assets 1,367.6 11903
MEEE Current assets 232.2 2879
FrRBas Non-current liabilities (1,209.1) (1,1955)
mEEE Current liabilities (179.0) (1485)
BEFE Net assets 211.7 1342
WA Revenue 91.8 819
Yo Al Profit 1123 1179
%8 Group
LEKEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
FEMRE Unlisted investments 0.2 06
ERTHLTRERADAEE Advances to unlisted investee companies less provision 16.1 175
16.3 18.1
%%ﬁﬁztﬁ&;ﬁ R mE Listed investments in Hong Kong at market value (2005: at cost)
“ZTRF  BNAE) 103.3 476
BZTE%“M Mortgage loans 52.0 823
171.6 1480
tmEHmE Market value of listed securities 103.3 752

MR EMRESY BRIERM G L2 TIERE
NEEEAFE  mRAHRRE(E) AR -

Unlisted investments are carried at cost less impairment, if any, as they do not have a
quoted market price in an active market to determine their fair value.
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14 78 14 Inventories
%@ Group
LB BEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
UREBZFECRKRYE — i Completed properties for sale located in Hong Kong - medium leases 10,2145 10,7573

BRASHFENGE 2 EER(BREELRZHE  The amount of inventories (included above) carried at net realisable value is
EN)A=T—BEL(ZZZTRE WF=H $31.0 million (2005: $43.0 million).

B) e
15 FE UK BR X 2 HL fth FE L =X 15 Trade and Other Receivables
%8 Group ‘A7) Company
LB BEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
RIBER Mortgage loans 2.6 43 - -
PRI - e RBAK Debtors, deposits and prepayments 1,545.1 991.2 0.2 02
1,547.7 995.5 0.2 0.2

Bt AEUBR SR R E e WK 2 FEMRR - BBRER  Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors with the following ageing
ST analysis:

%8 Group
WEKEETE in HKS million 2006 2005
—EAR Within 1 month 376.4 4387
—Z={@A 1-3 months 3.0 37
=@AKE Over 3 months 0.6 23
380.0 4447

REBRBEREZEERR  WEHREEWIE  The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade debtors
RZERDMBREL B ER - LWEREEE s prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
WEFE#EZ EERBRRERE - associated with receivables.
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16 BN RAMREMEMNK

16 Trade and Other Payables

%8 Group A7) Company
LB BETIE in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
BT R B A (M EEi) Creditors and accrued expenses (Note i) 945.8 1,102.1 5.4 345
Bz S (M) Deposits received (Note ii) 1,035.2 9327 - -
1,981.0 20348 5.4 345

R

() BRREEGERAERDR —FATREN
ZREFE-FABELTEL(ZRBEF: =F
NE=+E7) -

() BWEL B THEZES M TE=E=F—
BT AMESELHE  YAAREEN=E=
F-ABATEREEAKX - AREULUER BHET
MESRHERER - R=FTMENAZA - EEH
AEEHBF - TE AR EFAERY LR o R=F
FREF-ASHA - LIWAEBHAREBY - B
FERAEEERRE LR - RAFOR T LF
17 -

Bz LE-FRA-TEL(Z2BAF BT
— BB e R —FRTEES -

B AT ARE BR AR E A JE ST R 2 FE S SR EL R R
W :

Notes:
(i) Creditors and accrued expenses include retention money payable of $29.7 million (2005: $38.3
million) which is not expected to be settled within one year.

(i) Included in deposits received was an amount of $321.0 million related to a down payment
from the purchaser of The Bay Bridge where the purchaser terminated the purchase and claimed
against the Group for return of the deposit of $321.0 million and for damages. The Group, in return,
counterclaimed against the purchaser for breach of the agreement. On 2 August 2004, the Court
ruled in favour of the Group in this litigation and the purchaser lodged an appeal to the Court

of Appeal. On 30 December 2005, the Court of Appeal ruled in favour of the Group again. The
purchaser lodged a further appeal to the Court of Final Appeal scheduled for hearing in 2007.

Deposits received of $714.2 million (2005: $611.7 million) are not expected to be settled within
one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing
analysis:

%8 Group
LEKEE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
—{& A mEIE Due within 1 month 692.5 6339
=R AR5 Due over 3 months 83.3 67.7
775.8 7516
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17 REEBEBRLZBIIE 17 Taxation in the Balance Sheets
a. REEBBERLZERRIE a. Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:
%8 Group
WEBEETiTE in HKS million 2006 2005
REEBBNEHAE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 150.7 4083
REEREAEHAE Provision for PRC Income Tax for the year 39.0 45
NEFEZERMNGHERE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax relating to prior years 194.2 2129
383.9 625.7
b. EZEHE b. Deferred taxation
REGEEEABREIBRAZELKRBAR/(E  The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in the consolidated
E)SMRENZEFHNT balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:
FESHE RAHiKER
YNl EEZ BAE
& MEER KRGS ZHE ity
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of Future
related Revaluation benefit of Interest
WEBBETITE in HK$ million depreciation of properties tax losses capitalised Total
fLﬁIﬁéiﬁA ; Deferred tax arising from:
“TTWELA-H At 1 July 2004 490.6 1,087.3 (58.0) (415) 14784
?'?Mﬂlmi‘%ﬂﬁﬂl‘? JUBA)  Charged/(Credited) to consolidated
(Bi3E6(a) income statement (Note 6(a)) 1536 13330 (57) 106 14915
RZZZRFAA=THER At 30 June 2005 and 1 July 2005
“ZZTh¥tA—H 644.2 24203 (637) (309) 29699
NS RENErE b Charged to consolidated
(fH3E6(a) income statement (Note 6(a)) 973 797.7 173 = 9123
“EERERAZTH At 30 June 2006 7415 3,2180 (464) (309) 38822
¢ KRER ZLL*RIEEF c. Deferred tax assets not recognised

REFHARE THBRAREERBEIRN_F  The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of $2,163.0
—BAT=BE8T(=ZZ £¢ +/EZ=F7<  million (2005: $1,826.9 million) sustained in the operations of certain subsidiaries as
BATEL) REEERELNELCHRBEEE the availability of future taxable profits against which the assets can be utilised is
LR BARZZTRFAAA=TH  AAfE notprobable at 30 June 2006. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong operations do
HEEEEENARERBEFDTGEE - k5 not expire under current tax legislation. The tax losses arising from mainland China
EREBNBEBHERBRREREER LW ARE  operations expire five years after the relevant accounting year end date.

K MPBEAERNHEERIN B F

EARFREE -
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18 RITER
RAAZ+EMERBTERZERAMT -

18 Bank Loans

At 30 June, bank loans were unsecured and repayable as follows:

%8 Group

KEBEETIE in HKS million 2006 2005
—FREMERN After 1 year but within 2 years 795.2 -
MERBRER After 2 years but within 5 years 4,253.8 3022
hF% After 5 years 6,814.3 6,188.5

11,863.3 6,490.7
B RS ER Less: unamortised front end fees (76.3) (936)

11,787.0 6,397.1

PR ERITERIR =2 EZRH —E (=
ZTHF  THNEE=HLE)FHNEHE -
FMER—F(ZTTRF : —FIZNEHEE -
AEERTERZ AFERNABEREZ REE -

19 ZEZENFRHP2FEEE

FREBHARBRZHBRARRT - EEME
BERARREZEFEREZARERAE - BF
FE=ZZNEERAE(ZTTHF : TH A EE
“HOE)FE  ARZTETAF T _AZHE
BB RNBBMA R DR R EM AR 2R -
MER—F(ZTTRF : —F)ZAEHETE -

AEEFERBZAFEROSREERZKR
H1E °

R-BERFRAA=ZTH BUALFEER
2O REYEEMEMREENESLFEER
BYATBMRES

20 HttRHEE

All the above bank loans are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 3.6% to 5.1%
(2005: 0.4% to 3.7%) per annum. Interest is repriced within one (2005: one) year.
The fair values of the Group's bank loans were approximate to the corresponding
carrying amounts.

19 Floating Rate Notes Due 2009

The floating rate notes were issued by the Company’s subsidiary. These notes
are guaranteed as to principal and interest by Hang Lung Properties Limited,
bear interest ranging from 3.4% to 5.0% (2005: 0.6% to 3.4%) per annum,
repayable in full in December 2009 and have no rights of conversion into shares
of the Company or any other body corporate. The interest is repriced within one
(2005: one) year.

The fair value of the Group’s floating rate notes was approximately the carrying
amount at the balance sheet date.

At 30 June 2006, except for the above floating rate note, the Group has no other
outstanding fixed or floating rate notes or convertible bonds.

20 Other Long Term Liabilities

£EG
o (83))
(restated)
LB EE T E in HKS million 2006 2005
BAMNAE(MEE21) Finance lease obligations (Note 21) 570.0 6426
—EMBARZ AEREAH 5.5% convertible cumulative preference shares of a subsidiary (Note)

BREBRELR(H:E) - 355.0
B A Deferred income - 177
ARnE Land premium 0.7 07

570.7 1,116.0
B3 - Note:

RIZBZERERNAZTARE  FEE-HHBARR
RIGREEMARITEZ TRBRERERBARZ
MEBARZED  MEBATAREERRE BB
RERBESFRH 2 LA S5 o

118 BrREEERAT —B2H/ENFEH

On 26 June 2006, a subsidiary of the Group has completed the conversion of all of its outstanding
convertible cumulative preference shares into shares of the subsidiary and listing of such convertible
preference shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and Luxembourg Stock Exchange has been
withdrawn accordingly.
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Total minimum lease payments under finance lease and their present values are

as follows:
% Group
BVENZ  BRAREE LR
He@mvBE FAZHEER HensE
Presentvalue Interest expenses
of minimum relating to Total minimum
LEEBETIE in HK$ million lease payments future periods lease payments
“ERRE 2006
&% Amounts payable
—FR Within 1 year 72.6 42.7 1153
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 402.0 109.2 511.2
LFk After 5 years 168.0 7.9 175.9
570.0 1171 687.1
642.6 159.8 8024
—ZTRF 2005
B &% Amounts payable
—FR Within 1 year 636 475 111
—FREREFA After 1 year but within 5 years 3554 1355 4909
hFk After 5 years 287.2 243 3115
642.6 159.8 8024
706.2 2073 9135

MEBNREZERNEREGFLE(ZZFZTR  The effective interest rate of the finance lease obligations is 7% (2005: 7%) per

F:LE)

annum.
2006 2005
R&ingi B k1% B
(&) BEEET (FH) BEEET
No. of shares No. of shares
(000) HKS million (000) HKS million
iy Authorised
BREE-T Shares of $1 each 2,000,000 2,000.0 2,000,000 2,000.0
BEITRER Issued and fully paid
®tH—H At 1 July 1,328,150 1,328.1 1,327,530 13275
R D BT 218 1T 2 IR D Shares issued under share option scheme 4,266 43 620 06
®AA=1H At 30 June 1,332,416 1,3324 1,328,150 1,328.1
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%8 Group A7) Company
(E51) (&Z31)
) ‘ (restated) (restated)
WEEBETITE in HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
ERGE Capital reserves
B % E Share premium 2,228.8 21973 2,228.8 21973
RUGARAMEE 2 EARE Capital reserve on consolidation - 10584 - =
EEEE DR EAGEE Share of capital reserves of jointly controlled entities 165 165 - -
N HE Capital redemption reserve 26.1 26.] 26.1 26.1
BAEEE Investment revaluation reserve 26.1 = - =
HiEARRE Other capital reserves 44 4216 = =
2,301.9 3,7199 2,254.9 22234
EERNBERE Employee share-based compensation reserve 50.2 378 233 182
a ‘Lﬁﬁ% General reserve 275.0 2750 861.6 8616
R R il Retained profits 21,053.6 174778 7,552.3 73462
21,378.8 17,790.6 8,437.2 8,226.0
23,680.7 21,5105 10,692.1 10,4494
EXREEZD Movements in capital reserves
RtA—H At July
- LERHE - as previously reported 3,719.9 37173 2,223.4 22202
—~REMATEEMEE CENHE - opening adjustments arising from adoption of
HKAS 39 HKAS 39 27.6 - - -
HKFRS 3 HKFRS 3 (1,480.0) - - -
2,267.5 37173 2,223.4 22202
Bgubiatict Share premium
—BEMR G BRE EIBTRG ~ share premium arising on shares issued
FEE 2 RIDEE under share option scheme 27.5 32 275 32
—EERHAERET - employee share option benefits 40 - 40 -
REEMhHE Investment revaluation reserve
—HELMREZR - realised on disposal of listed investments (15.5) = - =
—FRERFELN ~increase in fair value of listed investments 14.0 - - -
Hit B A REE Other capital reserves
—-EREE - exchange difference 44 (06) - -
RAA=1H At 30 June 2,301.9 3,7199 2,254.9 22234
EERNHERELD Movements in employee share-based
compensation reserve
®tA—H At 1July
-LEERSE - as previously reported = = = =
—RIRRHKFRS 2T E £ 2 ~ prior period adjustments arising from
RIERF R adoption of HKFRS 2 37.8 40 18.2 20
-57 - as restated 37.8 40 18.2 20
EERNBERE Employee share-based compensation reserve
-EEREER — employee share-based payment expenses 205 338 9.1 16.2
-BREEROEE - transfer to share premium (4.0) = 4. 0) =
—BREELYRFER — transfer to minority interests (4.1)
RANA=Z1H At 30 June 50.2 378 233 18.2
REGEFLE Movements in retained profits
RtA—H At July
—LERHE - as previously reported 17,5156 13,508.7 7,364.4 7,9806
— FFAHKFRS 26T E & - prior period adjustments arising from
AR adoption of HKFRS 2 (37.8) 4.0) (18.2) (20)
-7 - as restated 17,4778 13,504.7 7.346.2 79786
~AERUTRRAEE 2 FORE - opening adjustments arising from adoption of
HKAS 39 HKAS 39 (11.0) - - -
HKFRS 3 HKFRS 3 1,480.0 - - -
18,946.8 13,504.7 7,346.2 79786
AEZHF] Net profit for the year 2,832.6 46437 931.9 38.2
EEERDRS Final dividend in respect of previous year (532.7) (478.0) (532.7) 4780)
KEFRHRE Interim dividend in respect of current year (193.1) (1926) (193.1) (1926)
RAR=Z1H At30June 21,053.6 1747738 7,552.3 7,34622
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23 Reserves (Continued)

%8G

RN 2 )

(restated)

WEBEETTE in HKS million 2006 2005
RERFBRE : Statement of retained profits:

SERA Group companies 20,757.3 17,2338

CEVNG] Jointly controlled entities 296.3 2440

21,053.6 174778

BOEERLEABORBZAED XA
BCRARGRD) FO+NZHEEED+NIKE
B -RABHRAREAERIMBIHEERS
RFEZRFEEFE - WREME1KRI0)Z
S HREE - TRFBEREREES - A7
KOk - B AR R ERRESINNER R
BRRELCELZE - WM E (AL - &
BRMABEREEECREERRKITEZRN
Hig s nFE-

RZZZREFRAA=ZTH  ARAAHD K TR
R2REBeBERNTHE-—T=ZBL+ER
(Z220FEN - N+RELBEN+ET) -

24 DY B RER

The application of the share premium account and the capital redemption reserve
are governed by Section 48B and Section 49 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance respectively. The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change on the fair value of available-for-sale securities held at the
balance sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

in note 1(k) and 1(l). The general reserve was derived from retained profits and

is distributable. The other capital reserve comprises the exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries.
The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as explained in note 1(y).

The aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 30 June 2006 was $8,413.9 million (2005 restated: $8,207.8 million).

24 Minority Interests

%8 Group

LEEEETE in HK$ million 2006 2005
RtA—H At 1 July

- LEEHRE ~ as previously reported 21,4825 15,6380

— EERAHKAS 32/ £ 2 AT ER R B ~ prior period adjustments arising from adoption of HKAS 32 (355.0) (460.6)

- & - as restated 21,1275 15,1774
FERMHKAS 39T E 4 2 FHHE Opening adjustments arising from adoption of HKAS 39 (9.8) -
KEELERREREIERR Profit attributable to minority interests for the year 2,169.0

- LFEHRE - as previously reported 36048

— E R MHKAS 32FTE £ 2 AT AR - prior period adjustments arising from adoption of HKAS 32 (275)

— EERAHKFRS 2/ E £ 2 I R R B — prior period adjustments arising from adoption of HKFRS 2 (153)

- & - as restated 3,562.0
EIRDERERS Dividends paid to minority interests (830.2) (780.6)
EBEFLHBRERE Repayment to minority interests (131.6) (314)
—ZHBRALERRERED Change in minority interests in a subsidiary (1,025.2) 3,1848
FE1E i Share of reserves 13,5 153
AV ER=! At30June 21,3132 21,1275
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25 KERERERNE
a. REREEBECBEE

25 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

a. Cash generated from operations

(E51)

(restated)
LB BETIE in HKS million 2006 2005
BR B AR A Profit before taxation 6,152.7 10,109.9
HE: Adjustments for:
REMFE AT EZEM Increase in fair value of investment properties (3,925.3) (6,290.3)
FMEREMEEEEX Interest and other ancillary borrowing costs 476.8 247
BMEROER Finance lease charges 475 516
EEREER Employee share-based payment expenses 29.9 49,1
e Depreciation 10.8 98
—fANBARZMARRERER KRS  Dividend on convertible cumulative preference shares of a subsidiary 17.2 275
FISWA Interest income (263.9) (1203)
B & — A L8 1 AR 2 & e Rl Deemed profit on placement of a listed subsidiary’s shares - (478.0)
BEAERAGEF Share of profits of jointly controlled entities (112.3) (117.9)
HEETEE 2 & Profit on disposal of fixed assets (86.0) (470)
HEEMRE 2&F Profit on disposal of listed investments (18.5)
HEFETRE ZEF Profit on disposal of unlisted investments = 13)
ELER Exchange difference 44 23)
BEZRD Decrease in inventories 449.4 13592
REBEFZRD Decrease in mortgage loans 320 464
UG e REMZZ(EMm)/ md (Increase)/Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments (323.0) 1,085.8
ERZRLETERZRD Decrease in creditors and accrued expenses (101.7) (3374)
BRI Increase in deposits received 102.5 808
RELLEB RS Cash generated from operations 2,492.5 56503

b. RERRESEEY b. Cash and cash equivalents

LR BEETE in HKS million 2006 2005
BAEEEBBRNASRBIER Cash and deposits with banks in the consolidated balance sheet 6,189.4 37338
B RE=EARIBMRITER Less: Bank deposits with maturity greater than three months (699.5) (699.5)
BERERERNRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement 5,489.9 30343

RABEARBRZASMRITEREMSME
R MERBEERTIHMER—F(

FoF)ZAEHREE

prevailing market rates.

122 ©BREEERAF —B2H/ENFEH

Cash and deposits with banks in the consolidated balance sheet are interest bearing
—ZFZH  atmarketrates. The interest rates are repriced within one (2005: one) year based on
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RANA=ZTHEZAREBENT : At 30 June, contingent liabilities were as follows:
7] Company
WEREETiTE in HKS million 2006 2005
RMBRARMEGZRIEE Guarantees given to banks to secure credit facilities
it &R for subsidiaries 3,350.2 2303.2
RAA=ZTHEARARMBREEE 2 E* At 30 June, capital commitments not provided for in the financial statements
BT were as follows:
%8 Group
LBEBETIE in HKS million 2006 2005
BED Contracted for 1,033.1 764.0
BREERKED Authorised but not contracted for 2,976.8 29312
4,009.9 3,695.2

P AEAEAREERAMEREEBEF The above commitments include those in respect of the Group's expansion of its
3 2 (B T 2 AR

o

property investment operations into various cities in mainland China.

AN REBEEEE QR ZEANRENAT ¢ In addition, the Group's share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled
entities is as follows:

%8 Group
LEREETHE in HKS million 2006 2005
BEA Contracted for - 583
ERERRAREN Authorised but not contracted for = 212
- 79.5
REBEREBE+FANER T BEEERY The Group leases certain properties under non-cancellable operating leases

HRAETYWE BETHARESZSMERAME  expiring within ten years. Certain leases include contingent rentals calculated with
TSRS - RAA=TH  RERZEDEFZ  reference to revenue from the properties. At 30 June, total future minimum lease

Me@BEmT payments were as follow:
%08 Group
LB RS E in HKS million 2006 2005
—FR” Within 1 year 78.3 759
—FREREA After 1 year but within 5 years 3229 317.1
B After 5 years 51.2 1300
4524 5230
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28 EEER

a. RIKEF
AREEAREERUAERFRAEE - &
AFETZEEA—RBILZRAAREAEE
VTHEXEGKHEEE BAKEZEEDH
B -

BXLMEEDZEREZEAFEZETAN LY
FERBOLEREFEEE - ERENT2
BERSASERFAR L ZE - RERRZH
ROBAGBES ZREAR - AKEART B
HIKFMEREEABREBES ZHERAL
THBERP - NEE AU R H A
Ko BFEARREEL &AL T EDRER -
AREREEAZHFBER—TAREBETL(Z
TR —THEL+ET)  MBEARESR
ZRBHERERRBATTEL(ZETREF
A8 - REANEEZRIRTEN GBI
ARERERAZEFABREA-R(ZFFA
FZRA)ERITBRARMXAN_E-TET
(ZZFTRF : —ANTERL)ERIHZK -

—HEEKEERUERB S ([BRERE
BEKY UM —BIRBEBEH - BE
FEEDHREEZEABBUA(LRA-E
TL)Z BN ZBEHBREIMEMHK - AREZ HK
S2HLARBEENMER CRP LSRR E
Rz R8RS - AEERAFERNEL 2B
EHFBRBAB=TEL(ZZETHF: —7
B -

HRARE 2 RAREHE T —RERRREE
TIROIMB R RN 8 ([BERKFE]) - B
EERAFERRESHAEZKEERAR - M
HFriEB A —RIERESEBZERAG L RES

B

ARBEPEARKME (THE]) EEMEEE
BzWBRR - HEETITEEWMBUTHR LR
ZERBME B ([ BERKRAMETE ) 28 -
ZEPEMBRARAMBAEZE—BE  THiRE
BrXHeB2XEAALL - M BRKBEME
BMFHEFUMERRHNENES - MABEED
TR Bl A2 5% 5 v B PN B 28 B 2 P B 3R BB R S 2
BRZEEZERABMER - ZETHMBELR
RAFERELZEFBEANBE-_TEL(Z
ZERF  LA=TET)
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28 Employee Benefits

a. Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme for its
employees. The assets of this scheme are held separately from those of the Group
by an independent corporate trustee and managed by professional fund managers.

Contributions are made by both the employer and the employees at a certain
percentage of employees’basic salaries, the percentage varying with their length
of service. When an employee leaves the scheme prior to his or her interest in the
Group's contributions being fully vested, forfeited contributions are credited to
reserves of the fund. Depending on the level of reserves, the Group may direct the
trustee to credit dividends to members’accounts out of the reserves of the fund. The
Group's contributions may be reduced by the forfeited contributions, but there was
no such reduction of the Group’s contributions during the year. Total contributions
made by the Group for the year amounted to $16.0 million (2005: $14.5 million) and
forfeited sums credited to reserves amounted to $0.5 million (2005: $0.5 million).
Total contributions made by the Group for the year included a special contribution
of $2.2 million (2005: $2.8 million) made in respect of 2 (2005: 2) senior executives in
accordance with the provisions of the Group's retirement scheme.

A master trust Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the ‘MPF Scheme’) is operated
by an independent service provider. Mandatory contributions are made by both
the employer and the employees at 5% of the employees’monthly relevant income,
up to a limit of $20,000. The Group's contributions will be fully and immediately
vested in the employees’accounts as their accrued benefits in the scheme. Total
MPF contributions made by the Group for the year amounted to $1.3 million

(2005: $1.0 million).

As the Group's provident fund scheme is an MPF Exempted Occupational Retirement
Scheme (the ‘'ORSO Scheme’), eligibility for membership of the ORSO and MPF
schemes is identical. New employees are offered a one-off option to join either the
ORSO or the MPF scheme.

Staff in the Company’s subsidiaries operating in Shanghai, the People’s Republic of
China ('PRC’), are members of a retirement benefits scheme (the ‘PRC RB Scheme’)
operated by the local municipal government in the PRC. The only obligation of the
PRC subsidiaries is to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the PRC RB
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal government in the

PRC undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries. Total contribution made by the PRC
subsidiaries for the year amounted to $6.2 million (2005: $7.3 million).
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28 Employee Benefits (Continued)

b. Equity compensation benefits

The Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 24 November 2000,
whereby the Board of Directors (the ‘Board’) of the Company are authorised to grant
options to selected participants, including directors of any company in the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board at the time of grant, and shall be the highest of the nominal value

of the shares, the closing price of the shares at the date of grant and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant. The vesting period, the exercisable period and the number of shares subject
to each option are determined by the Board at the time of grant.

Hang Lung Properties Limited

The Company’s subsidiary, Hang Lung Properties Limited (HLP’) has a share option
scheme which was adopted on 22 November 2002, whereby the Board of HLP

are authorised to grant options to selected participants, including directors of any
company in the HLP group, to subscribe for shares of HLP. The exercise price of the
options is determined by the Board of HLP at the time of grant, and shall be the
highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the shares at the
date of grant and the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The vesting period, the exercisable period
and the number of shares subject to each option are determined by the Board of
HLP at the time of grant.
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28 Employee Benefits (Continued)

b.

Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
The movements of share options of the Company during the year are as follows:

HEHA
Number of share options
—ZThE RZZTRE
tﬁ = £R ANA=TH P fn Bi4E 1R
AT FERRI BRITE ERRR AT Rt A# 21768 (&)
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Period during Exercise
on 1 July during during during on 30 June which options price
2005 the year the year the year 2006 Date granted are exercisable (HKS)
E £ Directors 3,750,000 - (1,250,000) = 2,500,000 24/02/2000 24/02/2001- 6.12
23/02/2010
1,250,000 = = = 1,250,000 01/11/2001 01/11/2002- 587
31/10/2011
10,866,000 - (1,388,000) = 9,478,000 20/05/2004 20/05/2005- 945
19/05/2014
€& Employees 2,390,000 - (1,110,000) = 1,280,000 24/02/2000 24/02/2001- 6.12
23/02/2010
100,000 = (100,000) = = 01/12/2000 30/11/2001- 549
29/11/2010
75,000 = (75,000) = = 10/07/2001 10/07/2002- 6.87
09/07/2011
120,000 = = = 120,000 07/12/2001 07/12/2002- 6.83
06/12/2011
500,000 = = = 500,000 12/05/2004 12/05/2005- 10.17
11/05/2014
3,058,000 = (343,500) (61,500) 2,653,000 20/05/2004 20/05/2005- 945
19/05/2014
= 77,000 = = 77,000 01/11/2005 01/11/2006- 14.70
31/10/2015
&5t Total 22,109,000 77000  (4,266,500) (61,500) 17,858,000
126 ErR&EERAT —STH/BAFFR
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28 EEREF = 28 Employee Benefits (Continued)
b. ROBEER(E b. Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
I WABTEZARRARMBAESHEREEHE 1. Movementsin the number of share options of the Company outstanding and
MEFHTEE2EEBNT - their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2006 2005
MEFH T
BRITEE BRITEE
(1) R B E (&) i g2 E
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
price per share Number of price per share Number of
(HKS) options (HKS) options
Rt A-BERETE Outstanding at 1 July 8.30 22,109,000 8.25 22,866,000
BE&I Granted 14.70 77,000 - -
[RERy:d Exercised 7.47 (4,266,500) 6.19 (619,500)
B A Lapsed 9.45 (61,500) 945 (137,500)
RARAZTBRREITHE Outstanding at 30 June 8.52 17,858,000 830 22,109,000
RAB=TRTFIE Exercisable at 30 June 7.95 11,465,500 7.16 11,266,000

RERTEIBOBPETEZ B ZMEFY  The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for shares options during
BRERTETAAMMI(ZZEZEF : T2 theyearwas $15.68 (2005: $12.78).

AN -
2. ARERARRBRAFITEZBROUEZRE 2 Share options of the Company outstanding at the end of the year have the
BRFHRTEBWT following remaining contractual lives and exercise prices:
2006 2005
FSenEH PR 7 A HerahES F f7 3
(F) Z¥AE (%) Z¥A
Remaining Remaining
contractual life Number of contractual life Number of
(years) options (years) options
T1E(E Exercise price
$549 - - 54 100,000
$5.87 5.3 1,250,000 6.3 1,250,000
$6.12 3.7 3,780,000 47 6,140,000
$6.83 5.4 120,000 64 120,000
$6.87 - - 6.0 75,000
$9.45 79 12,131,000 89 13,924,000
$10.17 7.8 500,000 88 500,000
$14.70 9.0 77,000 - -
RN AZ=+REAETE Outstanding at 30 June 6.8 17,858,000 75 22,109,000
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28 Employee Benefits (Continued)

b. Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
The movements of share options of HLP during the year are as follows:

BiEHa
Number of share options
RZZTHF RZZTRE
+A-H N ~ £R , ~NA=1A ~ 5 17 ER e 1R
HARBITE EFOET ERRH B®ITE ERER BRI =k PAGYE (ET)
Qutstanding  Reclassified Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Period during Exercise
on 1 July during during during during on 30 June which options price
2005 the year* the year the year the year 2006 Date granted are exercisable (HKS)
£ Directors 18,694,000 2,422,000 - (3,239,000) = 17,877,000 20/05/2004 20/05/2005- 9.20
19/05/2014
= - 1,000,000 = = 1,000,000 01/09/2005 01/09/2006- 1235
31/08/2015
& & Employees 10,267,000  (2,422,000) = (953,000)  (247,000) 6,645,000 20/05/2004 20/05/2005- 9.20
19/05/2014
400,000 = = = = 400,000 03/05/2005 03/05/2006- 11.85
02/05/2015
= = 400,000 = = 400,000 01/09/2005 01/09/2006- 1235
31/08/2015
= = 306,000 = = 306,000 01/11/2005 01/11/2006- 1140
31/10/2015
&5t Total 29,361,000 - 1,706000  (4,192,000)  (247,000) 26,628,000
*WIHEANMEERA ABRBESS 2 RGO AR * These represented the options of two directors of HLP promoted during the year
3. MAWITEZERMERGEESHERES 3 Movements in the number of share options of HLP outstanding and their
BEFHITRELEEBIT related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
2006 2005
IEFBTREE EFHTEE
(BT) Bguril2 4= (BT TR fn 2B
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
price per share Number of price per share Number of
(HKS) options (HKS) options
RERA—HERKTE Outstanding at T July 9.24 29,361,000 9.20 29,561,000
BERE Granted 12.18 1,706,000 11.85 400,000
BHITH Exercised 9.20 (4,192,000) 9.20 (50,000)
BAH Lapsed 9.20 (247,000) 9.20 (550,000)
RANAZTRERETE Outstanding at 30 June 9.43 26,628,000 924 29,361,000
RAR=TBEATAR Exercisable at 30 June 9.22 12,361,000 920 7,240,250

RERITEZRGBETEE B 2 INEFRE
Bt rTtZA/MI(ZEZRF: +—7x—A) -
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The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise for shares options during
the year was $12.28 (2005: $11.10).
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28 Employee Benefits (Continued)

b. Equity compensation benefits (Continued)
4. Share options of HLP outstanding at the end of the year have the following
remaining contractual lives and exercise prices:

2006 2005

FIAEHES FEHES
() R in EAER B (%) ftn B2 A

Remaining Remaining
contractual life Number of contractual life Number of
(years) options (years) options

I8 Exercise price

$9.20 7.9 24,522,000 89 28,961,000
$1140 9.3 306,000 - -
$11.85 8.8 400,000 98 400,000
$12.35 9.2 1,400,000 = =

RAA=+HEKRETHE Outstanding at 30 June

8.0 26,628,000 89 29,361,000

5. FREREZNBEENE LB HRA (18
N — R BEEEEAM G 20k
Rz METHEBERZTT - FIRAZMETH
RERMT

5. The weighted average value per share option granted during the year estimated
at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes pricing model was $3. The weighted
average assumptions used are as follows:

NG| BEmE
The Company HLP
RIATBER 2 k1h S

Share options granted on
ZZTRFNA—B ZETZRE+—A-AH

1 September 2005 1 November 2005
REAHZRE Share price at grant date $14.70 §12.35 $11.25
L Exercise price $14.70 $12.35 $1140
1 3 B 2 Risk-free interest rate 4% 4% 4%
HHEREDR(F) Expected life (in years) 6 6 6
W IR Volatility 04 03 03
BHEREE Expected dividend per share 5040 $040 5040

FEBREOE I EELEE LR  DEEE
B BN —F RS AREZAH ST AL B
MERRSRBBERETE - EXBAEE B
RAYAT G EREALE -

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns
is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the one year immediately
preceding the grant date. Expected dividend per share is based on historical
dividend. Changes in the input assumptions could materially affect the fair

value estimate.
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1. FEEE
AEEBZFEERRERS BROFRREE
AEBHRFRAREEREBIBRERFRE
B ARRBFEERS RERN R RET R
TRE -
AENKEERABZANERETEE/E
RHFE18 ~ 19+ 21K 25(b) FIAIE o

2. RnEBEZTEE
REREHERARNRRAMBARESEER
J:Zmuibé@ﬂh $%.§Fﬂiﬁﬁ—rﬁfﬁﬁﬁ/m§b
EeBI UREHEEENAERZHRE
BREERFAMIRSREBRALIERITRER
EMREZEZHKIR  UWnRERBESHFRK -

3. FEEE
AEEZEERBRTIERREBERERME - A%
BIETHEZEERR - ARETE R 2LE R
RZIRERAMN - WINABRBES - BEMEZSE
EUFRERZ EERBRERE

HERRRBZAE LREGAEEAGBRASR
MBEECREE ARBYESEAKTEE
BB o

4. EEEfE
HEMREERABUELAEBEGEEE 2 XiE

REE 2 MR E B R MBS

18R

ERIIE  AIELAERER - AKERBAEHE
B2ER  BZRENERNRER  #FHER
BEREBAE  AEENERL KRS -
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29 Related Party Transactions

The Group has a 20% interest in a jointly controlled entity which participated in
the development of Package One of the MTRC Tung Chung Station Development
Project. At 30 June 2006, the Group advanced to this jointly controlled entity a total
of $1,015.3 million (2005: $1,015.3 million). All advances are interest-free, unsecured
and have no fixed settlement dates.

Key management compensation has been disclosed in note 5.

30 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Exposure to interest rate, liquidity, credit and currency risks arises in the normal
course of the Group's business. The Group's financial risk management policies and
practices are described below.

1. Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from cash and deposits with banks and
borrowings. The Group’s policy on interest rate risk management involves monitoring
of interest rate movements and replacing and entering into new bank facilities when
favourable pricing opportunities arise.

The interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities and repricing/
maturity dates are disclosed in notes 18,19, 21 and 25(b).

2. Liquidity risk

The Group manages centrally the liquidity risk of the Company and its subsidiaries
at the Group level. The Group monitors the current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants regularly, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major banks to meet its liquidity requirements.

3. Creditrisk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The Group
maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade receivables is prepared
on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk associated
with these receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated balance sheet. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

4. Currency risk

Currency risk arises when recognised assets and liabilities are denominated

in a currency that is not the Group’s functional currency. The Group monitors
currency exposure by designating the borrowings in local currencies to match
the corresponding payment currencies to mitigate exposure on exchange
rate fluctuations.
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30 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(Continued)

5. Fairvalue
Unlisted investments for which their fair values cannot be reliably measured are
stated at cost.

The fair values of receivables, payables, cash and deposits with banks, bank loans and
floating rate notes are considered to approximate their carrying amounts.

31 Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 28 contains information about the assumptions and their risk relating to fair
value of share options granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

1. Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group are revalued as at the balance sheet date by
independent qualified valuers, on an open market value basis with reference to the
total rental income after taking into account reversionary income potential.

The assumptions adopted in the property valuations are based on the market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date, with reference to current market sales
prices and the appropriate capitalisation rate.

2. Properties for sale and investment properties under development

Management determines the net realisable value of properties held for sale by using
the prevailing market data such as most recent sale transactions and market survey
reports available from independent property valuers.

Management's assessments of the recoverable amount of investment properties
under development requires the application of a risk-adjusted discount rate to
estimate the present value of future cash flows to be derived from the investment
properties under development. These estimates require judgment as to the
anticipated rents by reference to recent leasing transactions in nearby locations,
marketing costs and the expected costs to completion of the properties, the legal
and regulatory framework and general market conditions.

32 Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been re-classified due to changes in accounting
policies, details of which are set out in note 2.

33 Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 August 2006.
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3 FEMBLF 34 Principal Subsidiaries
R-ZZBERFEAA=TA At 30 June 2006
BEITRA EEMh R RAEIFE
(&) BAX BHEHE 7% BalipeE Sk
Issued Held by Held by Place of
N Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
Akihiro Company Limited 2 100 100 MEER BB
Property development Hong Kong
Antonis Limited® 10,000 559 - NERE &
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP City Limited 2 559 . S BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Joy Limited 2 559 - NEBR &%
Property development Hong Kong
AP Properties Limited NEBR )
[A] B 34 559 - Property development Hong Kong
‘N'shares
[B] B& 6 - -
'B'shares
AP Star Limited* 2 559 - BRRE B
Investment holding Hong Kong
AP Success Limited 2 559 - MERE E
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Universal Limited* 2 559 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP Win Limited” 1,000,000 559 - NxHE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
AP World Limited 2 559 - MEER &%
Property development Hong Kong
Bayliner Investment Ltd.* 8 100 100 EiRiRE EEERRRES
Investment holding British Virgin Islands
Believecity Limited* 2 100 - BERIREREFER £
Investment holding & Hong Kong
securities trading
Bonna Estates Company Limited 1,000,000 559 - WERE &k
Property leasing Hong Kong
EEREBERRA" 4,000,000 559 = MERE BB
Caddo Enterprises, Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
REEERRA] 2 559 = MERE B
Carmana Limited” Property leasing Hong Kong
Cititop Limited 2 559 - MEER B
Property development Hong Kong
Cokage Limited* 2 100 100 R E B
Investment holding Hong Kong
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34 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

BETRA SEfEER ARFTE )
(1) ERES BaAnk £% BRISEES k]
Issued Held by Held by Place of
NG Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
BHERERAR TR E B
Country Bond Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[Al B 990 54.7 -
"A'shares
[B] B& 1 559 -
'B'share
BERERERAT 2 100 - EREE e
Country First Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BRMEERATF 5,000,000 574 - EREE e
Country Link Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Crest Incorporated* 16 100 - FRIEE EBERREE
Investment holding British Virgin Islands
Curicao Company Limited* 2 100 - EREE Ek
Investment holding Hong Kong
Dokay Limited* 2 559 - MERE E
Property leasing Hong Kong
BEERARAT Bk E ENE
Ease Smart Development Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] & 1 100 -
‘A'share
[Bl B& 1 559 -
'B'share
BREEEERAF 2 559 = EREE e
Easegood Enterprises Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BERREER AR 2 100 100 EREE £
Ever Brilliant Investment Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Folabs Limited* 2 100 - MEME £
Property leasing Hong Kong
Fu Yik Company Limited* 3 559 = MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
ETHEBRAA" 2 559 = Bk E ENE
Gala Ruby Limited™ Investment holding Hong Kong
BREXARAR" 2 100 100 MERE £
Glory View Properties Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Gowily Limited 2 559 - MERE ENE
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Centre Limited 4 559 - MERE BN
Property leasing Hong Kong
Grand Hotel Group Limited 10,200 559 - REAFELERER e
Apartment operating & Hong Kong
management

Hang Lung Group Limited Annual Report 2005/06 133



B mA M=

Notes to the financial statements

34 TEHME A F

34 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

BEARA GBS NEIFTIE
() BAX BRANEK 7% BRIEES L
Issued Held by Held by Place of
N Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
REBEEEBRAR EREE BB
Grand Hotel Holdings Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
[A] B 62,163,123 559 -
‘A'shares
[BJ & 6,000,000 559 -
B'shares
EEERERAT 2 100 100 NEER 5%
Great Cheer Development Limited Property development Hong Kong
Hang Chui Company Limited 2 559 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Far Company Limited” 2 559 - R E EE
Investment holding Hong Kong
ERERAT 200 559 = NEHE BA
Hang Fine Company Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Kwok Company Limited* 10,000 559 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Hang Lick Company Limited* 10,000 55.9 - NERE 305
Property leasing Hong Kong
BE (TR BRLA 10,000 559 = ERRE &%
Hang Lung (Administration) Limited Management services Hong Kong
B (HE)BRAA 2 100 100 EREE )
Hang Lung (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Hang Lung Enterprises Limited* 2 100 100 BRIE N
Investment holding Hong Kong
BEFBERERRF 2 100 100 8% D
Hang Lung Financial Services Limited Financial services Hong Kong
EERREARAR" 2 100 100 BREE BA
Hang Lung Investments Limited* Investment holding Hong Kong
168 (Em) BRAF 1 55.9 - ERIRE BB
Hang Lung (Jinan) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Hang Lung Park-In Limited 2 559 - MERE BB
Property leasing Hong Kong
EREIRREBRAR" 10,000 559 - NEERREILER BB
Hang Lung Project Management Limited™ Project management Hong Kong
BEMEBRAT 3,731,707,670 55.9 - ER&EE BB
Hang Lung Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BENEERERDA 100,000 55.9 - NEER BB
Hang Lung Property Management Limited” Property management Hong Kong
EEMEREERAR" 2 559 = MmEARIE 0
Hang Lung Real Estate Agency Limited” Property agencies Hong Kong
B ( L8 EERERAF 2 100 = BIE R &R
Hang Lung (Shanghai) Properties Limited Management services Hong Kong
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34 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

BREARAE SEMERR ARIFTE
(&) A% BHANK 5% BRINEE S
Issued Held by Held by Place of
NG Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
Bl (&%) AR A 2 559 = TR & E
Hang Lung (Shenyang) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Bl (K2)ERDA 2 559 = EREE B
Hang Lung (Tianjin) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
EEEEREFRAR 2 100 100 B B
Hang Lung Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
Hantak Limited 2 100 100 e B
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hebo Limited 2 100 100 NEBR B
Property development Hong Kong
HL Enterprises Limited* 2 100 100 kiR E &
Investment holding Hong Kong
EEEE(ESR)ERAA" 2 100 100 B BE
HL Mortgage (HTG) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BRZE(ZRE)BRAR" 2 100 100 ot B
HL Mortgage (NH) Limited* Financial services Hong Kong
BREZB(RERE)ERAR" 2 100 100 up X
HL Mortgage (NP) Limited™ Financial services Hong Kong
BRZE(ZEE)BRAR" 2 100 100 B B
HL Mortgage (NV) Limited® Financial services Hong Kong
BEE(PE)ERAF 2 55.9 - ERRE Bk
HLP (China) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
BEMEREBRAT 2 55.9 - B B
HLP Treasury Limited Financial services Hong Kong
HLP Treasury Services Limited* 2 559 - Bk E EE
Investment holding Hong Kong
Hoi Sang Limited* 2 55.9 - EREE Ek
Investment holding Hong Kong
Kindstock Limited* 2 100 - TR & BB
Investment holding Hong Kong
BEEERAA" 2 100 - MEER 0
Land Venture Limited* Property development Hong Kong
Levington Limited* 8 559 - B EBERREE
Financial services British Virgin Islands
SHBERDA" 1,000,002 559 = NEER B
Lockoo Limited* Property development Hong Kong
BEREARAT 10,000 100 = mEER B
Luckyson Investments Limited Property development Hong Kong
RIS (IR ) R AR 20 89.7 - Bt BE
Lungsun Mortgage (PV) Limited™ Financial services Hong Kong
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34 TEMB AR 2

34 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

BEHIRAE

2 857 s
B5 X

NGl

(&) BRANEK 7% BRINEES L

Issued Held by Held by Place of

N Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
Magic Modern International Limited* 1 559 - B 5
Advertising Hong Kong

Mansita Limited* 2 559 = S BB
Property leasing Hong Kong

Modalton Limited 2 55.9 - NERE &%
Property leasing Hong Kong

Monafat Limited* 2 559 - NERE 305
Property leasing Hong Kong

L NG 2 100 - NERE B
Nikco Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
BEREBRAR" 10,000 100 - NERE BB
OceanTime Investments Limited” Property leasing Hong Kong
Ottringham Limited* 20 559 - WERE &%
Property leasing Hong Kong

Palex Limited* 2 559 - nERE BA
Property leasing Hong Kong

Paradot Limited™ 2 100 100 NEER &k
Property development Hong Kong

Pocaliton Limited 2 559 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong

Promax Limited 2 89.7 - MEER B
Property development Hong Kong

BEERLRA 1,560,000 100 100 R E B
Prosperland Housing Limited Investment holding Hong Kong
Purotat Limited* 2 100 100 R E B
Investment holding Hong Kong

Rago Star Limited 2 559 - NEEE 30
Property leasing Hong Kong

Rioloy Limited 2 559 - NEEE 5
Property leasing Hong Kong

Ronhero Limited* 2 559 - MERE &
Property leasing Hong Kong

Scotat Limited 2 89.7 - EREE 90
Investment holding Hong Kong

LR BENERRRAR" 295,026,798" 559 = NEBR REARLRE
Shandong Hang Lung Properties Ltd* Property development The People’s
Republic of China

EEERMEFRAR 751,822,110 559 - NEBR AR LAE
Shenyang Hang Lung Properties Ltd* Property development The People's

Republic of China
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34 Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

BEARAE iy g ARIFTE )

(&) A% BRANK 5% BRINEE S
Issued Held by Held by Place of
NG Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
HABEER AR 20 100 100 MEER E
Stanman Properties Limited Property development Hong Kong
Stooket Limited 2 559 - MERE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
Style Giant Limited 2 89.7 - MELE 0
Property development Hong Kong
EBREREBRAR" 2 100 100 NEBR B
Success Cosmos Development Limited™ Property development Hong Kong
Tegraton Limited 2 559 - MERE BN
Property leasing Hong Kong
Topnic Limited 2 100 100 MERE &
Property leasing Hong Kong
Velan Limited 2 100 100 mEER &
Property development Hong Kong
BREXERAR" 100,000 559 - NEBE BE
Wai Luen Investment Company, Limited* Property leasing Hong Kong
Wililoy Limited™ 2 559 = WERE BN
Property leasing Hong Kong
Yangli Limited* 2 559 - NEBE B
Property leasing Hong Kong
BREXZBRAR" 1,000 100 100 ERBRERESFEE Bk
Yee Fly Investment Limited” Investment holding & Hong Kong

securities trading
Zarat Limited* 2 559 - MERE £
Property leasing Hong Kong

BRIEEEN SEMEER ARIFTE \

(%) ER2ES BRANK £% BRINEE S
Registered Held by Held by Place of
mE AREFMBRNABOY Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Equity Joint Venture in The People’s Republic of China (USs) % % Activity and Operations
TEBARMEREERRA 167,004,736 544 - NEERNAE REARLANE
Shanghai Hang Bond Property Property development The People’s
Development Co, Ltd. &leasing Republic of China
HBEREREERAR 17,766,000 70 - NEER REARLNE
Shanghai Heng Cheng Real Estate Property development The People’s
Development Co, Ltd. Republic of China
HEEERMEREERLA 165,000,000 516 - NEZRREE REARLNE
Shanghai Kong Hui Property Property development The People’s
Development Co, Ltd. &leasing Republic of China

*EREFHE M EEMER
TEMEX

ERIHEZRRAEAREZENNEERE

N

FEZIEMEBRA -

*Not audited by KPMG

" Registered Capital

The above list gives the principal subsidiaries of the Group which in the opinion of

the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of the Group.
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35 TERE LT 35 Principal Jointly Controlled Entities
RZZEERERA=TH At 30 June 2006
BEITRA SEATEER RAEIFE \
(BT) ERE: L ISERES £% T R E
Issued Held by Held by Place of
YN Share Capital The Group The Company Incorporation
Company (HKS) % % Activity and Operations
BRERBERAR 400 25 - nERE BB
Daily Win Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
BEEE(KE)BRAR 2 50 = 0 &
Hang Hing Mortgage (TH) Limited Financial services Hong Kong
EBERFELAERAT 519,000 50 = 8% REK R &%
Hang Lung-Hakuyosha Dry Cleaning Limited Dry and laundry cleaning Hong Kong
Newfoundworld Finance Limited 100,000 20 - 0 BB
Financial services Hong Kong
Newfoundworld Holdings Limited 2,000,000 20 - iR E e
Investment holding Hong Kong
Newfoundworld Investment Holdings Limited 8 20 - Bk E EBERRES
Investment holding British Virgin Islands
Newfoundworld Limited 2,000,000 20 - MEER &%
Property development Hong Kong
Pure Jade Limited 1,000 20 - NEER BB
Property development Hong Kong
ERERERAA 3 186 - MERE N
Star Play Development Limited Property leasing Hong Kong
FHRAN RS G TR R E R The above companies are not audited by KPMG

FRIHEERRRUREE 2 HFNEESBE  The above list gives the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group which in the
AEBZEEEERA opinion of the directors, principally affect the profit and assets of the Group.
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